
Please ask for Leanne Neave DDI (01362) 656225
e-mail: leanne.neave@breckland.gov.uk

AGENDA
NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only

Committee - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMISSION

Date & Time - Thursday, 25th January, 2018 at 2.00 pm

Venue - Anglia Room, The Conference Suite, 
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least 
two working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is 

available, this will be provided, and reported to Committee.

Members of the OSC

Councillor E. Gould (Chairman)
Mr D. R. R. Oliver (Vice-Chairman)
Mr P. M. M. Dimoglou
Mr R. F. W. Brame
Mr D. M. Crawford
Mr T. J. Jermy

Mr A.P. Joel
Mr R.G. Kybird
Mrs S.M. Matthews
Mr T. F. C. Monument
Mr M. J. Nairn
Mr R. R. Richmond

Substitute Members
Cllr CR Bowes
Mr H Clarke
Mr J Newton
Mr P Wilkinson

PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING ARE 
REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE 

TELEPHONES
Democratic Services 
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke,
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE

Date: Thursday, 18 January 2018

Public Document Pack





Overview and Scrutiny Commission
25 January 2018

PROTOCOL

Working Style of the Overview & Scrutiny Commission (OSC) and Other 
Scrutiny Bodies

This document sets out the roles of Members and Officers, and the general principles to be adopted 
by the OSC and other scrutiny bodies such as Scrutiny Task and Finish Groups.

Member Leadership

Members of the OSC will take the lead in selecting topics for overview and scrutiny and will recognise 
that best practice identifies scrutiny as a non-executive Member-led activity. The OSC will expect 
Cabinet members to take prime responsibility for answering their questions about topics which chiefly 
relate to the Council’s activities.

A Constructive Atmosphere

Meetings of the OSC will be constructive and not judgmental. The Commission recognises and 
accepts that effective scrutiny is best achieved through challenging and constructive enquiry. People 
giving evidence should be given due respect and not made to feel under attack.

Independence 

Members of the OSC/task and finish groups will not be subject to whipping arrangements by the party 
groups.

Respect and Trust

Meetings will be conducted in a spirit of mutual respect and trust.

Consensus

Members of the OSC/task and finish groups will work together and, while recognising political 
allegiances, will attempt to achieve consensus and agreed targeted recommendations. There will be 
recognition that the OSC has a primary duty to scrutinise on behalf of the community.

Openness and Transparency

The OSC’s business will be open and transparent, except where there are sound reasons for 
protecting confidentiality. The minutes of the Commission’s meetings will explain the discussion and 
debate so that they can be understood by an outside reader.

Impartial and Independent Officer Advice

Officers who advise and support scrutiny will give impartial and independent advice, as officers 
support all members of the Council.

Regular Review

There will be regular reviews of how the scrutiny process is working, and a willingness to change if it 
is not working effectively.

Programming and Planning 

It is the responsibility of the OSC and the wider non-executive to determine its work programme and 
to allocate specific reviews either through a dedicated task and finish group or to undertake a review 
itself. Before each topic/review is commenced, the O&SC will agree the scope of the exercise, what 
information they will need initially, and which members, officers and external witnesses they wish to 
see.



Managing Time

The OSC will aim to conclude the business of each meeting in reasonable time. The order of business 
will be arranged as far as possible to minimise the demands on the time of witnesses. 

Member/Officer Roles

Executive members will regularly be called to account for the decisions they have made and to 
explain progress in key areas of their portfolio – and in the case of the Council Leader – the Council 
as a whole. Members will be expected to produce and present a brief written account of their 
executive activities and will then be questioned by members of the OSC for a period no longer than 20 
minutes.

Co-optees

“Expert witnesses” may be co-opted onto scrutiny task and finish groups to provide technical 
assistance to the review. Co-optees possess no voting rights.

Substitutes

Substitute members will be so listed on the agenda papers of the Overview & Scrutiny Commission. It 
is a member responsibility to alert a substitute in the event that she/he cannot attend a meeting. 



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
25 January 2018

PART A - ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Page(s)
herewith

1. MINUTES 8 - 12
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 2017.

2. APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTES 
To receive apologies for absence and to note substitute Members in 
attendance.

3. URGENT BUSINESS 
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972.

4. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate for the entire 
consideration of the matter, in respect of any matter in which a Member 
has a disclosable pecuniary interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the 
Localism Act 2011.  Members are also required to withdraw from the 
meeting room as stated in the Standing Orders of this Council.

5. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING 
To note the names of any non-members or public speakers wishing to 
address the meeting.

6. CAPITA UPDATE 13 - 17

Report of Stephen Ottewell, National Director Planning and Building 
Control, Capita Local Government.

7. QUARTER 3 2017-18 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT 18 - 39

Report of the Executive Director Strategy and Governance. 

8. BRIEFING ON GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATIONS 
Verbal briefing by the Executive Manager Governance. 

9. SERCO CONTRACT UPDATE 
To receive a presentation followed by question and answer session. 

10. UNSIGHTLY SITES UPDATE 
Verbal update by the Communities Manager. 

11. TASK AND FINISH GROUPS 
To receive a verbal update.



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
25 January 2018

Page(s)
herewith

12. OUTSIDE BODY FEEDBACK (STANDING ITEM) 
To receive an update from representatives on Outside Bodies.

13. SCRUTINY CALL-INS (STANDING ITEM) 
To note whether any decisions have been called-in for scrutiny.

14. COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION (STANDING ITEM) 
To consider any references.

15. WORK PROGRAMME 40 - 46
(a) A copy of the Commission’s work programme is attached.  The 

Commission is asked to agree any additions, deletions or 
amendments to the programme as appropriate.

(b) Member Issues:  In accordance with the Commission’s protocol for 
member leadership, which states that members of the Commission 
will take the lead in selecting topics for overview and scrutiny and 
in the questioning of witnesses, members are invited to put forward 
items for selection for future review.

A copy of the Key Decision Plan is attached for Members’ information.

16. NEXT MEETING 
To note the arrangements for the next meeting to be held on 8 March 
2018 at 2pm in the Anglia Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, 
Dereham NR19 1EE.



1

BRECKLAND COUNCIL

At a Meeting of the

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION

Held on Thursday, 14 December 2017 at 2.00 pm in the
Anglia Room, The Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham

PRESENT
Councillor E. Gould (Chairman)
Mr P. M. M. Dimoglou
Mr R. F. W. Brame
Mr T. J. Jermy
Mr A.P. Joel

Mr R.G. Kybird
Mrs S.M. Matthews
Mr R. R. Richmond
Mr P S Wilkinson (Substitute Member)

Also Present
Mr S. H. Chapman-Allen
Mrs L.S. Turner
Mr S.G. Bambridge

Mr J.P. Cowen
Mr P. R. W. Darby

In Attendance
Maxine O'Mahony - Executive Director of Strategy & 

Governance (Monitoring Officer)
Christine Marshall - Executive Director Commercialisation 

(S151 Officer)
Leanne Neave - Democratic Services Officer
Ross Bangs - Housing Manager
Alison Chubbock - Chief Accountant (Deputy Section 151 

Officer) (BDC)
Andrew Grimley - Team Leader (Environmental 

Protection)
Matthew Hogan - Strategic Housing Manager

Action By
111/17 MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 2 November 2017 were confirmed 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

112/17 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTES 

Apologies had been received from Councillors Crawford, T Monument, 
Nairn, Newton and Oliver. Councillor Wilkinson attended as a substitute 
member for Councillor Nairn.

113/17 URGENT BUSINESS 

None.

114/17 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

Councillor Richmond declared an interest for Item 6. 

7

Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
14 December 2017

2

Action By
115/17 NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING 

Councillors Bambridge, S Chapman-Allen, Cowen, Darby and Turner.

116/17 INTERNAL DRAINAGE BOARD 

The Chief Planning Officer, Mr Graham Brown and the Operations 
Manager WMA (Eastern), Mr Matthew Philpot, gave Members a 
presentation on the work of the Internal Drainage Board (IDB). 

Following the presentation the Chairman invited questions.

Councillor Matthews asked for confirmation as to how Breckland 
Council would receive additional money as mentioned in the 
presentation. 

Mr Brown advised that by adopting bylaws funding would be 
allocated to Breckland Council. As an authority having bylaws 
gave the ability to control watercourses and transfer water away 
from the district. 

Councillor Darby commented that he felt the Environment Agency 
could do more, if the rivers were cleared properly a lot of issues 
occurring with new build developments would not occur.  Mr 
Philpot advised that built up areas were classed as high risk; rural 
areas therefore had been tailed off as less funding was available.  
The IDB had pressured the Environment Agency for action which 
had resulted in the IDB receiving precept money so they were 
able to continue the work. 

117/17 DRAFT BUDGET SETTING, MEDIUM TERM PLAN AND CAPITAL 
STRATEGY 

The Executive Director of Commercialisation gave Members a 
presentation. 

Councillor Brame queried why the Thetford Enterprise Park 
funding would be coming out of the Capital Reserves.  The 
Executive Director advised that a sum was available in the Capital 
Reserves to fund this.

Councillor Cowen gave an overview from the Executive Members 
perspective.

Councillor Dimoglou queried the New Homes Bonus Growth fund 
and the reserve fund and was advised by the Executive Director 
that this was discussed and agreed at a meeting of the Cabinet in 
October.

Councillor Kybird asked for confirmation of the amount in the 
Pension fund.  He was informed the figure was for the entire fund 
and the deficit was associated with employee costs. 

8



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
14 December 2017

3

Action By

Councillor Darby queried where the market town initiative sat 
within the budget and was advised there was a specific reserve 
for that project. 

Councillor Jermy queried if the anticipated 597 new homes a year 
would be realistic and was informed it was a prudent figure 
although it was anticipated this could be higher.

118/17 APPRENTICESHIP PROGRAMME 

The Executive Member for Strategy, Governance and 
Transformation, Councillor Sam Chapman-Allen presented the 
report.

Councillor Kybird queried if Breckland Council could promote 
the scheme by placing apprentices with our Service Providers 
and if there would be Apprenticeship opportunities for 
Members.  The Executive Member advised that Breckland 
could encourage but each service provider organisations 
required their own scheme. In addition, Members could not be 
employees of the Authority, and reminded Members that 
should they require training the member training budget was 
available.

Councillor Wilkinson asked if there would be pension costs 
attached to Apprentice and was advised anyone employed by 
the Council was enrolled onto the pension scheme. 

Councillor Jermy queried if it could be possible to lobby Central 
Government for the funding that had been available historically to 
businesses with Apprentices.  The Executive Member would ask 
the Leader to raise this matter at the Leaders meeting in February 
2018 to consider funding for Norfolk. 

119/17 HOUSING UPDATES 

The Strategic Housing Manager provided an update on the 
Housing Strategy. 

The Housing Manager also gave a verbal update on the Disabled 
Facilities Grant. Members were informed that since September 
2015 the waiting list had decreased from over 200 to just 5. With 
the help of Better care funding Breckland Council were the best 
performing local authority in terms of waiting list numbers.  

Councillor Wilkinson queried if there was a current outreach 
programme to assist the homeless and was advised that there 
were two Link Workers who were outreach specialists and worked 
towards preventing homelessness.

Councillor Jermy raised concerns regarding Flagship Housing and 

9



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
14 December 2017

4

Action By
asked if their failings had an impact on Breckland’s Housing team.  
The Housing Manager confirmed that Breckland monitors the 
work of Flagship.   

The Chairman proposed to form a working group to investigate 
Members concerns regarding Flagship. It was agreed that 
Councillors Jermy and Matthews and the Housing Manager would 
be involved.  Furthermore Members of the Commission would be 
contacted to suggest additional interested parties who should be 
included in the working group. 

120/17 CITIZENS' ADVICE BUREAU UPDATE 

The Chairman confirmed Members had received an update from 
the Citizens Advice Bureau following their attendance at the 
previous meeting which had been positive.

Councillor Turner was grateful for the information on individual 
wards and advised that as a result of the update Shipdham Parish 
Council now donated to the Citizens Advice Bureau.

121/17 TASK AND FINISH GROUPS 

Councillor Dimoglou apologised for the delay in formalising the Task 
and Finish Group for Public Works Board. The Membership would 
include Councillors Kybird, Clarke and Turner. The terms of reference 
would be reported at the next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Commission. 

122/17 OUTSIDE BODY FEEDBACK (STANDING ITEM) 

Swaffham Air Quality
Councillor Wilkinson provided an update for Members following his 
attendance at the Swaffham Air Quality Action Plan Steering Group.

In response to a question from the Chairman, Councillor Wilkinson 
confirmed that any planning application that had an impact on 
Swaffham in terms of transport and road links would be considered.

Councillor Kybird suggested including an information leaflet on Nitrogen 
Oxide with the Questionnaire that would help to inform residents when 
completing the questionnaire.

The Environmental Protection Team Leader confirmed the 
questionnaire would be launched on 12th January 2018 and the website 
provided further information.  Any comments on the draft questionnaire 
should be forwarded to the Environmental Protection Team Leader by 
Monday 18th December 2017. 

Norfolk Health
Councillor Wilkinson advised members that a draft document had been 
issued by the Health System for Norfolk and Waveney concerning the 
potential for Wellbeing hubs that would aim to support Mental Health 
working.  The hubs would be community led and would operate in 
conjunction with GP’s.

10



Overview and Scrutiny Commission
14 December 2017

5

Action By

Breckland Youth Advisory Board
Councillor Wilkinson advised that this would be led differently going 
forward in that a young commissioner would shadow Councillor 
Wilkinson for a period of 6 months. 

123/17 SCRUTINY CALL-INS (STANDING ITEM) 

None.

124/17 COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION (STANDING ITEM) 

None.

125/17 WORK PROGRAMME 

The Chairman reminded Members that the Questioning Skills training 
had been scheduled for the 25 January and encouraged all Members to 
attend. 

126/17 NEXT MEETING 

The arrangements for the next meeting on 25 January 2018 at 2pm in 
the Anglia Room, were noted.

The meeting closed at 4.50 pm

CHAIRMAN

11



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Mark Dally, Regional Partnership Director  

To: Overview and Scrutiny Commission, 25 January 2018

Author: Stephen Ottewell, National Director Planning and Building Control, Capita 
Local Government

Subject: Capita Breckland Partnership – Progress Update for Improvement Plan 

Purpose: To provide an update on the progress made since October 2017 on 
improvements and enhancements to the technical services, including 
Planning and Building Control, provided by Capita on behalf of Breckland 
Council

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the content of the report be noted

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 This report seeks to provide information to the Overview and Scrutiny Commission on the 
progress made since the previous Capita report tabled at the Special Meeting on the 3rd 
October 2017. 

2. BACKGROUND SUMMARY  

2.1 The minutes of the 3rd October 2017 meeting outline the issues discussed by the 
Commission and these have been summarised and categorised below.

Service Improvement Plan  

2.2 The report summarised the Service Improvement Plan (SIP) which highlights the key 
areas for further development and covers:

 Responsiveness to Members
 Engagement with applicants
 Engagement with key stakeholders
 Working relationship between Officers

2.3 Progress against these issues are reviewed on a regular basis and overseen by the Joint 
Capita/Breckland Strategic Board. This report provides a further update on the progress 
made since October 2017. 

Staffing 

2.4 The loss of several senior staff had led to a situation where some applicants had 
experienced multiple case officers dealing with their applications. Members of the 
Commission debated the need for Capita to do more to recruit locally and to retain the 
best staff. Given the recent pressures caused by departures, there was also a question 
about staff welfare.     

12

Agenda Item 6



Services other than Planning  

2.5 It was concluded that most of the services operated by Capita on behalf of Breckland 
were performing well. Reference was made to the strong level market share achieved by 
Building Control and the work of Planning Policy to provide the Council’s emerging Local 
Plan. 

2.6 The message we have taken away therefore is that the handling of planning applications 
creates a disproportionate level of ‘noise’ for the Council and for Councillors; and that it is 
improvements to the planning function that need to be prioritised. 

Growth 

2.7 The Commission highlighted that Breckland Council had expected an income from the 
contract with Capita and there was concern that there was not enough information in 
Capita’s Business Plan in relation to growth and what could be provided. We highlighted 
growth was difficult and that we felt that getting the Breckland contract right and building 
our local reputation would help. 

2.8 There was a concern as to why the anticipated growth locally had not been achieved. The 
challenge set by the Commission was for us to work harder to achieve the growth and 
shared profit originally anticipated.

Stakeholders 

2.9 Feedback from the Commission and the from the Parish Council representatives in 
attendance at the meeting was that communication needed to improve. Specific examples 
were raised about the allocation of s106 monies, and concerns that the team had been 
failing to proactively monitor and control developments through the construction phase. 

2.10 Planning enforcement matters where highlighted. Parish Councils are concerned that the 
reactive nature of the service fails to ensure swift planning enforcement action is taken 
when the quality of the development does not meet the required standards.   

3. PROGRESS

3.1 After the October Scrutiny Commission, the issues raised have been translated into a 
revised Service Improvement Plan. Key highlights have been set out below: 

 
Staffing 

3.2 Since October 2017 local recruitment in planning has gone well and we have appointed a 
new Head of Development Management (Jon Berry) and a Senior Planning Officer (Fiona 
Hunter). We will continue to try and recruit locally but the Norfolk market is very 
challenging as evidenced by the Golden Hello’s being offered by other Authorities in the 
county.

3.3 A key part of the Capita solution is that we are able to offer resilience at times when 
workloads are high by utilising support from elsewhere. At present Breckland is benefiting 
from some support from our North Tyneside and Belfast operations. Whilst we struggle to 
find experienced, quality staff locally, it is likely that this remote support will continue to be 
part of our resource going forward. 

13



3.4 A concern was raised at the October Commission about staff retention and morale. 
Remote support is an important factor in this regard as it gives us capacity that can be 
turned on and off. This helps to prevent workloads for staff based locally being increased 
to a level that is untenable. Underpinning this we have introduced a software tool that 
identifies the capacity available in the team. Through this work (called project Vegas) we 
are developing capacity plans which will allow us to match resource to the work as 
applications are submitted.

3.5 Another concern raised by the Commission in October was the failure to retain senior staff 
and frustrations caused when applications have multiple case officers. A revised People 
Plan was presented to the Strategic Board in December 2017. Feedback from the leavers 
in summer 2017 indicated that, for 2 of the 3, their drivers for leaving were flexibility. To 
address this we are working to offer all staff, whatever their function, the opportunity to 
work from home thereby offering greater flexibility for staff to balance their commitments. 
The key to unlocking this potential is deployment of further IT improvements and we are 
working with the Council to secure these.  

3.6 We are keen to continue integrating Capita and Breckland staff, to foster working 
relationships that promote joint working. For example: Capita staff are now attending 
Breckland run training programmes; and Capita has agreed to make a financial 
contribution to sponsor the 2018 Breckland Staff Awards.        

 
Growth 

3.7 It was highlighted at the October meeting that there is frustration that the growth of the 
service that had been anticipated when Breckland entered into the contract with Capita 
has not been achieved. In light if this, we tabled an outline of our growth strategy and 
proposals for revisions of the gainshare Breckland benefits from under the contract at the 
December Strategic Board

3.8 At present the contract provides for a discount for the Council on the annual core charge 
where incomes levels exceeded a defined threshold. This threshold has not been 
exceeded in the past and is not forecast to do so in future meaning no discount would be 
forthcoming. A profit share mechanism is also included in the contract that allows 
Breckland to benefit where the cumulative profits (less costs) at the end of the agreement 
exceed a certain level.

3.9 To help win growth work locally we need Breckland to be a positive and supportive 
reference. Our priority therefore is to focus on securing further improvements to satisfy 
Breckland on the service received. In addition, in order to align our aspirations, we are 
proposing changes to the gain share mechanism which will allow the Council to realise 
immediate benefits from any growth work. This would be an improved position over the 
current growth threshold and we think could be positive for both parties.

Stakeholders 

3.10 The SIP covers the introduction of the Member Engagement Protocol and improved 
arrangements for the Member Liaison Officer. In light of the comments at the meeting in 
October we have ensured that the scope of these includes Town and Parish Council’s. 
The new protocol formalises that we will offer to attend Town and Parish meetings when 
asked so that we can improve communication and understanding.

3.11 The Parish Council representatives at the October meeting asked questions about the 
approach adopted by the Council’s Planning Enforcement Team. We have a commitment 
to produce an Enforcement Plan for Breckland that will set out how we will prioritise 

14



possible breaches of planning control, and this is timetabled for 2018. In addition, we 
recently promoted the opportunity to Members to call-in enforcement matters to the 
planning committee and a case was dealt with in this way in December. This change is 
designed to allow for escalation in limited situations where there is a concern about the 
course of action adopted. Another concern raised was that we do not actively monitor 
sites under construction. In response we have chosen to increase the size of the team 
and we have advertised an opportunity for a new Trainee. 

4. OPTIONS

4.1 NA

5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

5.1 NA

6. EXPECTED BENEFITS

6.1 NA

7. IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the 
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; Constitutional 
& Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & Diversity/Human 
Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; Safeguarding; 
Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales. The report author does not consider that 
there are any likely implications under these headings.

8. WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

8.1 All

9. ACRONYMS 

9.1 Service Improvement Plan (SIP)

Background papers:- Report to OSC - 3 October 2017 

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Stephen Ottewell - National Director Planning and Building 

Control, Capita Local Government
Email: Stephen.ottewell@capita.co.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

15



Appendices attached to this report: (list appendices below or delete)

N/A

16



BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Member for Strategy, Governance and Transformation

To: Overview and Scrutiny Commission – 25th January 2018
Cabinet – 6th February 2018

Author: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager

Subject: Performance Overview Report – Quarter 3 2017/18 

Purpose: To provide an update on Council performance for the period 1st October 
2017 to 31st December 2017

Recommendation(s): 

1)  To note the content of the report

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Quarter 2 Performance Report (Appendix A) provides Members and residents with 
information about the Council’s delivery against its Corporate Priorities and on the 
Council’s Corporate Health.  This covering report presents a summary of the status of the 
Council’s key indicators.

1.2 Areas of success, where performance is above target, are brought to Members’ attention, 
as are areas of concern where performance is below anticipated outcomes or is 
considered to be worsening.  Areas of performance are discussed at Performance Board.

1.3 KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

1.4 Current status of key performance indicators (above):  Quarter 3’s performance is 
assessed as ‘fair’ with 7 indicators (53%) marked ‘Green’, meaning that performance is 
very good and is meeting or exceeding the achievable standard.  1 indicator (8%) is 
‘Amber’ meaning performance in these areas is at an acceptable level between the 
minimum and achievable standards. 5 indicators (38%) are ‘Red’, meaning performance 
is poor and not achieving the minimum standard.

17

Agenda Item 7



1.5 AREAS OF SUCCESS

1.6 Performance in environmental services is good with figures in the quarter showing 
increased levels of recycling and composting, and a slight reduction in the amount of 
residual waste collected which is sent to landfill. Missed collections are at the lowest level 
since the end of 2016/17 with only 16 bins missed per 100,000 households in quarter 3 
which translates to 99.99% of collections made in the period. 

1.7 The LA error rate is reported as 0.25% for quarter 3 which stands out at the lowest this 
figure has been in quarter 3 for the last 3 years. This highlights the positive work 
undertaken to remain well below the threshold that risks financial penalties.

1.8 Net Council tax and Net business rates receipts are both showing positive figures not 
only demonstrating a significantly higher figure than last quarter but also compared to this 
time last year. % return on cash investment also shows positive as a result of loans made 
at a market rate to partners.

1.9 AREAS OF CONCERN

Customer contact performance is still a challenge due to a number of reasons including, 
sickness, staff unavailable due to training and specifically this quarter technical faults. On 
the first day of November and December there were technical faults with the systems 
due to an issue with the emergency mode on the system when the building was 
evacuated following a fire alarm in December. This heavily impacted the month’s 
abandonment rate raising the overall figure for the quarter and contributing to a total of 8 
red days in December, however these faults have since been rectified. 

The customer team service review has been approved and will positively change the way 
staff are distributed to improve availability on all channels, and provide additional 
resilience to help address the issues outline above. 

Following on from the internal process changes last quarter housing calls now remain 
steady at 11% with both departments developing new processes and customer service 
scripts that ensure these matters are dealt with in the most appropriate, efficient way and 
where possible promote digital alternatives. A key aspect of the improvement work the 
service is looking to make which is the web chat function. This will enable customers who 
are already online to continue to find information and make transactions through the 
website, reducing call volumes, improving wait times and abandonment rates, while still 
ensuring that those residents that need more intensive inputs are able to access the level 
of support they need.

1.10 Staff turnover is again above target with 12 leavers in the quarter. The vast majority have 
been resignations with 7 mainly from the revenues and benefits teams for the quarter.  
HR continue to offer leavers exit interviews in order to understand motivations and 
monitor for trends. Where necessary, they will meet with services to discuss patterns and 
address any issues raised following these interviews. HR are also undertaking work 
within the teams such as actively looking at current methods and channels of recruitment 
with the intention of incorporating a more digital approach as well as continuously 
reviewing our benefits package to ensure that we continue to be an attractive employer in 
the region.

1.11    The forecast interest income for the year is over budget as a result of loans to 3rd party 
partners for a longer period than originally budgeted such as Breckland Bridge, 

18



alongside a slight rise in recent longer term rates achieved, the finance team will 
continue to monitor this.

1.12    The number of upheld complaints in this quarter has increased, there were 28 complaints 
upheld in the quarter out of 45 received, 50% of these were upheld by the revenues and 
benefits teams, whilst this is high it is worth noting the LA error rate is performing well 
below the red threshold, the corporate improvement and performance team are looking 
at trends and common themes in upheld complaints to identify issues or areas that can 
be improved to reduce upheld rates, this will be communicated to ARP.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 No recommendations made.  Report for information and to be noted only.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 No recommendations made.  Report for information and to be noted only.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 Not applicable.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1 Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of 
the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2 Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 Constitution and Legal Issues have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications.

5.3 Contracts

5.3.1 Contracts implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author 
that there are no implications.

5.4 Corporate Priorities

5.4.1 The report presents progress monitoring of performance of the corporate priorities.

5.5 Crime and Disorder 

5.5.1 Crime and Disorder implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications.

5.6 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

19



5.6.1 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights implications have been considered and it is the 
opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.7 Financial 

5.7.1 Financial implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author 
that there are no implications.

5.8 Health & Wellbeing

5.8.1 Health & Wellbeing implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report 
Author that there are no implications.

5.9 Risk Management 

5.9.1 Risk implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 
there are no implications.

5.10 Staffing

5.10.1 Staffing implications have been considered and it is the opinion of the Report Author that 
there are no implications.

5.11 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.12.1 Stakeholder / Consultation / Timescale implications have been considered and it is the 
opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No Wards or Communities are affected

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 EMT – Executive Management Team

Background papers:- See The Committee Report Guide
Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager
Telephone Number: 01362 656866
Email: greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Greg Pearson – Corporate Improvement & Performance 

Manager

Key Decision: No

20

file://bcf01.intranet.breckland.gov.uk/corporate_improvement_performance/Performance/Reports/BDC%20OSC%20Cabinet/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
file://bcf01.intranet.breckland.gov.uk/corporate_improvement_performance/Performance/Reports/BDC%20OSC%20Cabinet/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Quarter 3 Performance Report

21



1

Q3 2017/18 BDC Overview and Scrutiny Report

Generated on: 11 January 2018

         

         

Indicator % of Customer Complaints Upheld - Stage 1 Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

# of complaints upheld # of complaints closed Value

Q3 2016/17 13 36 36.11%

Current Performance Q3

# of complaints upheld # of complaints closed Value

Q3 2017/18 28 45 62.22%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Complaints upheld as a % 
of all stage 1 complaints 
closed in period This is 
calculated using the 
number of complaints 
upheld divided by the total 
number of complaints 
closed in the period 

 

25%

 

A lower % is better as we look to reduce the 
number of complaints upheld where it can be 
demonstrated that the council is at fault 

Work is underway to help teams understand why complaints were upheld as 
well as analysis underway by the corporate improvement and performance 
team which has looked at complaints by type. Going forward the service is 
looking to work with the rest of the organisation on how we deal with 
complaints and look to address the situation going forward. This quarters 
upheld complaints are as follows, Revenues and benefits (14), Housing (3), 
Planning (2) and Community development (1)

22



2

       

 

 

         

Indicator % of Calls Abandoned Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

# Calls Abandoned # Calls Received Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance Q3

# Calls Abandoned # Calls Received Value

Q3 2017/18 4,992 30,108 16.58%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of calls that are 
answered by an 
appropriate member of 
staff from the total of calls 
offered 

 

10.1%

 

A lower % is better as we look to answer more 
calls 

Abandonment rates breached on 17 days in total for the quarter, on a 
lot of these days training took place and sickness was high on some 
days too. In addition the emergency mode didn’t work properly when 
the building was evacuated following a fire alarm going off and this 
heavily impacted December’s abandoned rate. 

        

23



3

 

         

Indicator Average Wait Time in Seconds Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Total # seconds to 
answer

Total # of calls Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A 73.33

Current Performance Q3

Total # seconds to 
answer

Total # of calls Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A 190

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Average Time to Answer 
Phonecalls in Seconds 

 

150

 

A lower number is better as it indicates less 
time waiting for a call to be answered 

Technical issues with the telephone systems have since been 
addressed and rectified many staff have been on training in the 
quarter which means they are not able to operate the phones.

        

         

24



4

Indicator % of household waste recycled or composted Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Recycle/Compost 
Tonnage

Total Waste Collected 
Tonnage

Value

Q3 2016/17 4707.45 11404.16 41.27%

Current Performance Q3

Recycle/Compost 
Tonnage

Total Waste Collected 
Tonnage

Value

Q3 2017/18 4833.56 9226.40 40.85%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of household waste 
which has been recycled 
and composted (includes 
garden waste) against all 
the household waste 
collected 

 

40% 
 

A higher % is better as we look to recycle or 
compost more waste 

% of household waste recycled or composted is currently on target 
and work with the waste teams continues to promote recycling 
through the district

     

 

   

         

25



5

Indicator Missed Waste Collections Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Number of missed 
collections

Num of collections per 
100,000

Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance Q3

Number of missed 
collections

Num of collections per 
100,000

Value

Q3 2017/18 40 2.563 16

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of missed waste 
collections per 100,000 
households

 

15
 

A lower number is better as we look to ensure 
fewer waste collections are missed 

Whilst this figure sits slightly above the target of below 15 it is worth 
noting that this is the lowest this figure has been at since the end of 
16/17

     

 

   

         

26



6

Indicator Residual Waste per Household (kg) Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Total residual waste in 
KG

Number of households Value

Q3 2016/17 6,807,205 60,657 112.22

Current Performance Q3

Total residual waste in 
KG

Number of households Value

Q3 2017/18 7,056,543 60,657 116.34

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of Kg’s of residual 
waste collected per 
household. Calculated by 
'residual waste collected' x 
1016.5 then divided by 
number of households 
waste has been collected 
from 

 

 120

 

A lower number is better as we look to reduce 
the amount of waste sent for incineration 

Residual waste per household is on target and the team continue to 
monitor this in line with the national average

         

         

27



7

Indicator % Return on Cash Investment (Treasury Yield) Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A 0.74%

Current Performance Q3

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A 1%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

The % return received on 
cash invested 

 

0.24%

 

A higher number is better as we look to 
receive more return on cash invested 

The return on cash investments is above the benchmark used (3 
month LIBID - London Interbank Bid rate)
This is mainly a result of loans made at a market rate to partners.
The interest rate earned excluding loans to partners is 0.419%, which 
still exceeds the target level.

        

 

         

28



8

Indicator Short term investment Income Forecast Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A -£270640

Current Performance Q3

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A -£223854

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Net variance from 
expected (budgeted) 
interest expected 

 

-£203184
 

The higher the negative figure the better as 
this indicates more income 

The forecast interest income for the year is over budget as a result of 
loans to 3rd party partners for a longer period than originally 
budgeted, alongside a slight rise in recent longer term rates achieved

       

 

 

         

29



9

Indicator SERCO Net Expenditure Variance Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2016/17 -89,622

Current Performance Q3

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 -13,207

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Net variance from 
expected (budgeted) 
spend - 'Significant 
Contract' Owned by 
Environmental Services 

 

0

 

The lower the better, we look to be closer to 
£0 variance as then we will have budgeted 
appropriately. A negative figure shows 
underspend, a positive is overspend 

A small variance is showing at the end of December for the full year 
forecast - £13k against a budget of £4,915k.

        

 

        

30



10

 

Indicator Capita Net Expenditure Variance Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2016/17 -27,491

Current Performance Q3

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 8,624

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Net variance from 
expected (budgeted) 
spend - 'Significant 
Contract' Owned by 
Planning 

 

0

 

The lower the better, we look to be closer to 
£0 variance as then we will have budgeted 
appropriately. A negative figure shows 
underspend, a positive is overspend 

A small variance is showing at the end of December for the full year 
forecast £9k against a budget of £2,490k, mainly resulting from 
costs against 'major' applications to date.

        

31



11

 

   

 

     

Indicator PFI Net Expenditure Variance Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2016/17 -458

Current Performance Q3

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2017/18 13,501

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Net variance from 
expected (budgeted) 
spend - 'Significant 
Contract' Owned by 
Community Development 
as above 

 

0

 

The lower the better, we look to be closer to 
£0 variance as then we will have budgeted 
appropriately. A negative figure shows 
underspend, a positive is overspend 

A small variance is showing at the end of December for the full year 
forecast £14k against a budget of £1,152k

        

         

32



12

Indicator Staff turnover % Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Number of Leavers Number of Employees 
FTE

Value

Q3 2016/17 10 273 3.66%

Current Performance Q3

Number of Leavers Number of Employees 
FTE

Value

Q3 2017/18 12 276 4.34%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of total leavers against 
total number of staff 
employed in period 
(includes involuntary 
leavers) 
  

 

 2.5%
 

Lower is better as we look to retain staff Out of the 12 leavers for this quarter the majority have been 
resignations (7) coming mainly from the revenues and benefits 
services

      

 

  

 

 

      

33



13

 

Indicator Cases Prevented from Homelessness per 1,000 Households Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance Q3

Number of cases 
prevented

Number of households Value

Q3 2017/18 57 60,657 0.9

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

P1E Return - Prevention 
and Relieving of 
Homelessness (No. of 
potentially homeless cases 
diverted from 
homelessness per 1,000 
households) 

 

 

 

This is not a targeted measure. The number 
does not reflect % of cases prevented from 
homelessness and therefore will fluctuate 
dependent upon demand to the service. 

In this quarter 57 cases were prevented from homelessness which 
has reduced since the previous quarter, the housing team continue to 
monitor this and work to ensure housing cases are prevented from 
homelessness.

         

         

34



14

Indicator Housing Benefit LA Error Rate Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expenditure

Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A 0.26%

Current Performance Q3

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expenditure

Value

Q3 2017/18 58,464.04 23,548,728.19 0.25%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Local Authority error in 
Housing Benefit 
overpayment Amount of 
benefits overpaid divided 
by benefits paid (% of 
overall expenditure) 

 

0.35%

 

Lower is better as we look to minimise the 
amount of money paid in error and reduce the 
risk of financial penalty (which occurs above 
0.48%) 

Work has recently been undertaken by the teams in Revenues and 
Benefits such as the profile of expenditure throughout the year as 
well as close monitoring of the figure which currently sits at the 
lowest it has been for Q3 in the last 3 years

        

 

        

35



15

 

Indicator Net Business Rates receipts Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A £25677489

Current Performance Q3

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A £26094856

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Actual revenue collected in 
respect of Business Rates 
against budget 

 
£25328862

 
Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the business rates debit as possible 

This time last year this figure was amber, indicating it was about to 
breach target, currently this figure sits below target which is positive

        

 

        

36



16

 

Indicator Net Council Tax receipts Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A £54921742

Current Performance Q3

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q3 2017/18 N/A N/A £58013510

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Actual revenue collected in 
respect of Council Tax 
against the amount which 
the authority has budgeted 

 
£57777649

 
Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the Council Tax debit as possible 

This figure remains above target and we have collected significantly 
more than this time last year.

37



17

         

         

Indicator Commercial Property Occupancy Trend Chart

 

Same time last year

Total floor space let 
(sq.ft)

Total lettable space 
(sq.ft.)

Value

Q3 2016/17 N/A N/A 98%

Current Performance Q3

Total floor space let 
(sq.ft)

Total lettable space 
(sq.ft.)

Value

Q3 2017/18 570,570.333 634,805.667 90%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Target is to achieve 90% 
occupancy level of the 
Council's commercial 
property (investment, non 
operational) assets which 
excludes operational 
assets 
Calculated by total floor 
space let over the total 
lettable space. 

 

90%

 

A higher number is better as we look to rent 
out as much of the commercial property space 
as possible and increase income 

The Commercial Property occupancy remains lower than previously 
reported primarily due to the Kings Lynn investment asset (ex Jaeger 
unit) remaining void, however performance is still within the target 
range.  This one asset represents 7%.  We are actively promoting and 
marketing all of our vacant properties to minimise void periods. 

 

38



Overview Scrutiny Work Programme 2017/18

This is an outline programme only and will be amended as issues arise or priorities change

Date Topic Member / Director / Lead Officer Objectives & Desired Outcomes
25 January 2018 Q3 Performance 2017‐18 

Performance Overview Report
Deputy Leader, Exec Member for 
Strategy, Governance & Transformation 
/ Greg Pearson

To provide an update on Council performance for the 
period 1.10.17 ‐ 31.12.17

Capita  Rob Walker / Alex Chrusciak To update the Commission on how the issues raised at the 
Special meeting held on 3 October have been addressed.

SERCO Exec Member for Place / Riana Rudland To receive an update on the contract of Serco and to 
discuss the positives / any improvements

Unslightly Sites Rob Walker / Steve James To update Members on progress
General Data Protection 
Regulations

Mark Stinson To provide a pre‐briefing on the requirements of the 
Regulations.

Town and Parish Forum Rob Walker / Riana Rudland To discuss the format of the Forum and the possibility of 
making it more interactive and/or passing responsibility for 
Agenda setting, etc to a 'T&P Forum Working Group' of 
Town and Parish Councillors.

Date Topic Member / Director / Lead Officer Objectives & Desired Outcomes
08 March 2018 Review of HR Policies Vicki Lowry / Cal Spearman To include:  Drugs and Alcohol Policy and Procedure

Stuck not sick policy
Flexible Retirement Procedure
Pensions Disclosure
Secondments Policy & Procedure
Career Break Policy

LGA Peer review Action Plan Members to have input into the Action plan

39

A
genda Item

 15



Overview Scrutiny Work Programme 2017/18

This is an outline programme only and will be amended as issues arise or priorities change

Car Park Management Review the Council's car parking management policy, 
specifically:  

Should there be an alternative policy incorporating 
enforcement or charging that will support the viability of 
the towns

Is there a way the Council can generate income either from 
charging or by other means?

New local plans are being put forward for the towns, but 
there is no provision for car parking? How will the towns 
deal with the expansion?

19 April 2018 Data Protection Policy Mark Stinson To review the Policy in light of the requirements of the 
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).

Review of HR Policies Vicki Lowry / Cal Spearman To include:
Salary Sacrifice Procedure
Flexitime and TOIL Policy
Market Supplements Policy and Procedure
Honoraria and Spot Bonus Policy

Broadband?? Karen O'Kane To receive a presentation.

Topics to be scheduled (These are topics raised by Members)

40



Overview Scrutiny Work Programme 2017/18

This is an outline programme only and will be amended as issues arise or priorities change

Date Topic Member / Director / Lead Officer Objectives & Desired Outcomes
tbc Norfolk County Council ‐ Schools Through Local Plan document – more developments will be 

built over coming years, but our schools are full.  How will 
NCC plan for this?

Intelligent Council Anna Graves / Greg Pearson To receive an update on being an 'Intelligent Council' and 
how this is progressing

Norfolk County Council ‐ Highways  Question ‐ look at levels of roads & drainage & how 
Highways deal with this.

Consider a project to support 
encourage market towns to 
support tourism
Market Town Initiative ‐ 
resource4Growth monies given to 
town ‐ 

Request Towns to report to OSC on progress of spending

Contractual Performance Review the Planning & Building Control contract
Review the Environmental Services Contract 

Public Toilets Simon Taylor‐Avery How have the towns used the money given to them and are 
the toilets still in use?

Health task & finish group To arrange a T&F group to discuss health issues within the 
district

Autumn 2018 Unreasonable behaviour/ vexatious 
complaints

Policy to be reviewed annually

41



1

KEY DECISION PLAN

VERSION 02/17

Issued – 
Effective for Period:
 01/02/18 - 30/12/18

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision is likely to be made, to:  
Julie Britton, Democratic Services Officer, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham, Norfolk, NR19 1EE.

Telephone 01362 656343 Email democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all key and significant decisions that are likely to be made over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is expected to be made.  .

Key decisions are Executive decisions involving expenditure or savings exceeding 25% of the budget sum approved for a particular service or function, or a decision which 
significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral divisions.
Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any 
non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, 
particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

Executive 
Member for 
Place (Health 
Lead)

Car Parking 
Orders

To amend the Car Parking Orders in relation to 2 car 
parks for a trial basis.

Car Parking Orders Cabinet 2 Jan 2018

42

mailto:democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk


2

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

Executive 
Member for 
Growth

Attleborough 
Neighbourhood 
Plan - Making 
(adoption) of the 
Attleborough 
Neighbourhood 
Plan

To "make" the Attleborough Neighbourhood Plan as part 
of the statutory Development Plan for Breckland and 
update the district policies map with the relevant 
policies.

Attleborough 
Neighbourhood 
Plan - Making 
(adoption) of the 
Attleborough 
Neighbourhood 
Plan

Cabinet 2 Jan 2018

Council 18 Jan 2018

Executive 
Member for 
People & 
Information

IT Technology 
Strategy

To consider the IT Technology Strategy IT Technology 
Strategy

Executive Management Team 15 Jan 
2018

Joint Informal Exec Briefing 29 Jan 
2018

Cabinet 20 Mar 2018

Council 5 Apr 2018

Executive 
Member for 
Growth

Norfolk Strategic 
Framework

To agree the Norfolk Strategic Framework. Norfolk Strategic 
Framework

Joint Informal Exec Briefing 29 Jan 
2018

Cabinet 6 Feb 2018

43



3

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

Executive 
Member for 
Growth

Alternative 
Proposal for 
Electricity Power 
Scheme in 
Snetterton

To approve an alternative improved Electricity Power 
Scheme for Snetterton, to that already approved at Full 
Council in January 2017. 

Breckland Directors 
Executive Member for 
Growth 

Alternative 
Proposal for 
Electricity Power 
Scheme in 
Snetterton
Alternative 
Proposal for 
Electricity Power 
Scheme in 
Snetterton

Executive Management Team 12 Feb 
2018

Joint Informal Exec Briefing 5 Mar 
2018

Cabinet 20 Mar 2018

Council 5 Apr 2018

Executive 
Member for 
Finance

Council Tax 
Setting 2018-19

To set the amounts of Council Tax applicable for 2018-
19 for each valuation band and in each part of the 
District. 

See budget setting report Council Tax Setting 
2018-19
Council Tax Setting 
2018-19

Council 22 Feb 2018

Executive 
Member for 
People & 
Information

Air Quality Action 
Plan

To consult / discuss on the development and generation 
of an Air Quality Action Plan as required by Part IV of 
the Environment Act 1995 in respect of the Air Quality 
Management Area declared in Swaffham. 

Officers and Ward 
Members across the 
council will be consulted 
along with colleagues and 
representatives from 
other affected 
organisations and 
community groups, 
particularly Norfolk 
County Council and 
Swaffham Town Council. 

Air Quality Action 
Plan
Air Quality Action 
Plan

Cabinet 20 Mar 2018

44



4

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF DECISION AND WHO 
WILL MAKE DECISION

Councillor Adrian 
Stasiak

Snetterton Power 
Upgrade Project

Briefing report for Director and Members at December 
2017 (to 20/12/17)

Snetterton Power 
Upgrade Project

Council 5 Apr 2018

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Julie Britton, Democratic Services Officer, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham, Norfolk, NR19 1EE.
Telephone 01362 656343 Email democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk 

45

mailto:democraticservices@breckland.gov.uk

	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Capita Update
	7 Quarter 3 2017-18 Performance Overview Report
	Appendix A for Quarter 3 2017-18 Performance Overview Report

	15 Work Programme
	Key decision plan Feb 2018


